
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given by the Board of Trustees that Granger-Hunter Improvement District will 
hold a Board Meeting at 3:00 p.m. on Tuesday, July 20, 2021, at its main office located at 2888 South 3600 

West, West Valley City, Utah. Trustees and members of the public are able to attend this meeting 
electronically and in person. 

 

Agenda   
A. GENERAL 

1. Call to order – Welcome – Report those present for the record 

2. Public Comments 

3. Consider approval of the June 29, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

4. Discuss potential conflicts of interest 

 

B. OUR COMMUNITY 

1. Consider Approval of Interlocal Agreement Providing For Extra-Territorial Services with 

Taylorsville-Bennion Improvement District. 

 

C. OUR OPERATIONS 

1. Review & discuss Financial Report for June 2021 

2. Review & discuss Paid Invoice Report for June 2021 

3. Consider the Approval of a Construction Contract to Silver Spur Construction, LLC in the 

amount of $1,172,500.00 for the 20B: Rushton Waterlines Project. 

4. Consider the Approval of a Contract Amendment to J-U-B Engineers, Inc. in the amount of 

$99,400.00 for Construction Administration Services for the 20B: Rushton Waterlines 

Project. 

5. Consider the Approval of a Landscape Design Contract to J-U-B Engineers, Inc. in the 

amount of $56,000.00 for the 21J: GHID Headquarters Landscaping Phase II. 

 

D. CLOSED SESSION 

1. To discuss the character, professional competence or physical or mental health of an 

individual. 

 

E. OUR TEAM 

1. Consider Approval of Compensation for the General Manager 

2. Consider Approval of 2021 Market Compensation Plan 

  

F. BOARD MEMBERS INPUT, REPORTS, FOLLOW-UP ITEMS OR QUESTIONS 

 

G. CALENDAR 

1.  The next board meeting will be August 24, 2021 

 



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

1 

                                                MINUTES OF THE 

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING  

 
The Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Granger-Hunter Improvement District (GHID) was held 

Tuesday, June 29, 2021, at 3:00 P.M. at the District office located at 2888 S. 3600 W., West Valley City, 

Utah. 

 

This meeting was conducted electronically in accordance with the Utah Open and Public Meetings Act 

(Utah Code Ann. (1953) §§ 52-4-1 et seq.) and Chapter 7.12 of the Administrative Policy and Procedures 

Manual (“Electronic Meetings”). 
 

Trustees Present: 

Debra Armstrong             Chair   

Corey Rushton              Trustee  

Roger Nordgren              Trustee  
 

Staff Members Present: 

Jason Helm             General Manager 

Todd Marti             Assistant General Manager/District Engineer 

Troy Stout             Assistant General Manager/Chief Operating Officer 

Michelle Ketchum                       Director of Administration 

Dustin Martindale            Director of Water Systems 

Ricky Necaise             Director of Wastewater - Excused 

Victor Narteh              Director of Engineering 

Justin Gallegos            Director of Information Technology 

Austin Ballard             Controller 

Dakota Cambruzzi            Human Resource Manager 

Kristy Johnson            Executive Assistant 

Brent Rose             Legal Counsel – Clyde Snow & Sessions PC  

 

Guests: 
Adam Spackman System Administrator, GHID – Electronically 

Brooke Petersen Administrative Assistant, GHID - Electronically 

Drew Ovard Information Technology Division Manager, GHID - Electronically 

 

 
 

A copy of the exhibits referred to in these minutes is attached and incorporated by this reference. The 

exhibits are also included in the official minute books maintained by Granger-Hunter Improvement 

District.   
   
             



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

2 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

 

Public Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approval of the 

May 18, 2021  

Board Meeting Minutes 

 

      

 

 

Conflicts of interest 

 

OUR COMMUNITY 

Jordan Valley Water 

Conservancy District 

Review 

 

Central Valley Water 

Reclamation Facility 

Review 

 

OUR TEAM 

Consider Approval of 

Member Agency Water 

Conservation Funding 

Agreement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 At 3:04 P.M. Debra Armstrong called the meeting to order and recognized all 

those present.   

 

Jason Helm read the public comments that were received through GHID’s 

website as follows: 

• Lyle Evans – District customer – Since we are in a drought and all 

people in Utah are being asked to conserve water, I suggest West Valley 

City, Utah, where I live, should pass a law that businesses or residents 

take out lawn in park strips and replace with rock or bark.  If trees and 

shrubs are in park strip, then water with bubbler type water system.  

This would save so much water not going on sidewalks and roadways.  

It would also look nice and be easy to maintain. 

• Jim – How are citizens supposed to prepare for board meetings when 

the District is three months behind on minutes? 

 

A motion to approve the Board Meeting Minutes from May 18, 2021, was 

made by Roger Nordgren, followed by a second from Debra Armstrong.  

 

The motion passed as follows; 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                Nordgren – aye 

 

There were none. 

 

Jason Helm reviewed the Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District (JVWCD) 

Board update. - See Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District Report attached 

to these minutes for details.    

 

 

Mr. Helm reviewed the Central Valley Water Reclamation Facility (CVWRF) 

Board update. - See Central Valley Water Conservancy District Report attached 

to these minutes for details. 

 

Michelle Ketchum asked the Board to consider approval of Member Agency 

Water Conservation Funding Agreement. After a brief discussion regarding the 

leak detection program, Corey Rushton asked that the District provide leak 

detection results and efficiency data for review before the July meeting. Corey 

Rushton made a motion to approve the agreement as noted. Following a second 

from Debra Armstrong, the motion passed as follows: 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

3 

OUR OPERATIONS 

Consider Approval of 

Resolution 06-29-21 

 

 

 

 

 

Review & Discuss 

Financial Report for 

May 2021 

 

Review & Discuss Paid 

Invoice Report for  

May 2021  

 

 

 

 

 

Water Maintenance 

Update 

 

Wastewater 

Maintenance Update 

 

Water Supply Review 

 

 

Consider Award of a 

Construction Contract 

to COP Construction for 

the 20E: Pioneer WWPS 

Replacement Project 

 

 

 

Consider Approval of a 

Contract Amendment 

for Bowen Collins & 

Associates for the 20E: 

Pioneer WWPS 

Replacement Project 

 

 

 

 

Austin Ballard asked the Board to consider approval of Resolution 06-29-21 

adopting the 2021 Certified Property Tax Rate. A discussion took place regarding 

tax rates and the process for certifying the tax rate. Roger Nordgren made a 

motion to approve Resolution 06-29-21, adopting a rate of 0.000414. Following 

a second from Corey Rushton, the motion passed as follows: 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 

Mr. Ballard summarized the May 2021 Financial Report. Mr. Ballard mentioned 

the possible shortage in revenue by the end of 2021 but overall, everything seems 

to be tracking normal for this time of year. 

 

Mr. Ballard discussed the May check report. The May check report totaled 

$2,532,450.40 coming from five categories; Central Valley (33%), infrastructure 

(21%), Jordan Valley (17%), taxes, payroll and benefits (12%), and other (17%).   

 

A discussion took place regarding a meter purchase from Kearns Improvement 

District and the procurement process when purchasing items from a sister 

agency.  Mr. Ballard followed up on Corey Rushton’s request for further 

information about an audit committee.   

Troy Stout presented the water maintenance report. – See Water Maintenance 

Board Report attached to these minutes for details. 

 

Mr. Stout presented the wastewater maintenance report.  – See Wastewater 

Maintenance Report attached to these minutes for details.  

 

Todd Marti presented the water supply report. – See Water Supply Report 

attached to these minutes for details. 

 

Mr. Marti asked the Board to consider the award of a Construction Contract to 

COP Construction in the amount of $4,117,000.00 for the 20E: Pioneer WWPS 

Replacement Project.  After a short discussion, Debra Armstrong made a motion 

to approve the contract as noted. Following a second from Roger Nordgren, the 

motion passed as follows: 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 

Mr. Marti asked the Board to consider approval of Contract Amendment for 

Bowen Collins & Associates in the amount of $206,650.00 for additional design 

efforts and construction phase services for the 20E: Pioneer WWPS Replacement 

Project.  Roger Nordgren made a motion to approve the contract amendment as 

noted. Following a second from Debra Armstrong, the motion passed as follows: 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 

 

 



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

4 

 

Consider Approval of a 

Construction Contract 

to North Face Roofing, 

Inc. for the 20G-1: 

Building B Reroof 

Project 

 

Capital Projects & 

Engineering Update 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS 

INPUT, REPORTS, 

FOLLOW-UP ITEMS 

OR QUESTIONS 

 

ADJOURNED 

 

Mr. Marti asked the Board to consider approval of Construction Contract to 

North Face Roofing, Inc. in the amount of $98,600.00 for the 20G-1: Building B 

Reroof Project.  Corey Rushton made a motion to approve the contract as noted. 

Following a second from Roger Nordgren, the motion passed as follows: 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 

Mr. Marti presented the capital projects and engineering reports. – See Capital 

Projects and Engineering Reports attached to these minutes for details.  

 

At 4:18 P.M., Debra Armstrong made a motion to enter into a closed session to 

discuss the character, professional competence or physical or mental health of 

an individual.  Following a second from Roger Nordgren, the motion passed as 

follows; 

 

Armstrong – aye                  Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 

* The Board members remained present and called in Jason Helm, Todd Marti, 

Troy Stout, and Dakota Cambruzzi separately during the closed session. 

 

At 6:37 P.M., Corey Rushton made a motion to end the closed session and enter 

back into an open session. Following a second from Debra Armstrong, the 

motion passed as follows; 

 

Armstrong – aye                  Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 

There were none. 

  

 

  

 

Inasmuch as all agenda items have been satisfied, Roger Nordgren made a 

motion to adjourn the meeting.  Following a second from Debra Armstrong, the 

motion passed as follows and the meeting adjourned at 6:38 P.M.  

 

Armstrong – aye                      Rushton – aye                      Nordgren – aye 

 

 

Debra K. Armstrong, Chair 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

 

Austin Ballard, Clerk 

 

 

__________________________________________ 



 

1 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT PROVIDING FOR  
EXTRA-TERRITORIAL SERVICES 

 
 This interlocal agreement is entered into as of the last date indicated on the signature 
lines below, pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Utah Code Ann. § 11-13-101, et seq., by 
TAYLORSVILLE-BENNION IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, a water and sewer improvement district of 
the state of Utah (“Taylorsville-Bennion”) and GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, a 
water and sewer improvement district of the state of Utah (“Granger Hunter”).  
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Taylorsville-Bennion and Granger Hunter are both water and sewer 
improvement districts authorized to provide water and sewer service to the residents and 
property owners of their respective service areas, and they share a common boundary that 
roughly mirrors the boundary between West Valley City and Taylorsville City. 

 
B. There are several properties along the shared boundary where some services are 

split, in that one entity is providing water and the other entity is providing sewer, regardless of 
which entity has jurisdiction to serve the property (“Split Services”). More specifically, there are 
some properties where Taylorsville-Bennion provides sewer service within Granger Hunter’s 
boundaries, and there are some properties where Granger Hunter provides sewer service 
within Taylorsville-Bennion boundaries.  

 
C. The parties have completed or will be completing a boundary adjustment to 

clean up and update the boundaries to better reflect the actual provision of services, the 
parties desire to memorialize in writing those arrangements where there are Split Services that 
are not able to be fixed by a boundary adjustment.  

 
D. Pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Utah Code Ann. § 11-13-101, et seq. 

(the “Interlocal Act”), any power or powers, privileges, or authorities exercised or capable of 
exercise by a public agency of the state may be exercised and enjoyed jointly with any other 
public agency, and that any two or more public agencies may enter into agreements with one 
another for joint or cooperative action. 

 
E. The Boards of Trustees of Taylorsville-Bennion and of Granger Hunter have 

determined that it is in the best interest of both districts to enter this interlocal agreement to 
agree to extra-territorial service provided in the Split Service areas and to set forth how charges 
will be collected and shared.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants 

contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, it is agreed as follows: 

 
 



 

2 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. Water and Sewer Services.  
 
a. Taylorsville-Bennion shall provide sewer services to those properties 
located within Granger Hunter’s boundaries as shown in Exhibit A.  
 
b. Granger Hunter shall provide sewer services to those properties located 
within Taylorsville-Bennion’s boundaries as shown in Exhibit B. 
 
c. If either district hereafter desires to begin providing water or sewer 
services to those properties which are currently being provided by the Split 
Service provider, the district requesting the change shall give the Split Service 
provider at least 60-days’ advance written notice of its intent to provide such 
service. The notice shall specifically identify the property to be served, the 
service to be provided, and the expected service start date. The Split Service 
provider shall coordinate with the district requesting the change as to the 
physical transfer of such services, and the district requesting the change shall be 
solely responsible for any and all costs incurred by both districts in making the 
change. 

 
2. Ownership, Operation, and Maintenance of Lines. 

 
Each district shall own and have the sole responsibility and obligation to operate, 

maintain, repair, and replace all main water distribution lines and laterals and all sewer 
collection lines and laterals situated within its own boundaries as well as the lines and laterals 
that it operates outside of its own boundaries.  

 
3. Water and Sewer Service Charges and Collection. 
 

a. Fees. Each district shall bill its customers directly for the Split Services it 
provides outside of its boundaries pursuant to this agreement. Customers will be 
charged the providing district’s standard published rates.  
 
b. Taxes. The district that is collecting property taxes on the properties 
affected by this agreement shall pay one-half of the taxes collected on those 
properties to the other entity. This payment shall be made within 30 days of the 
relevant district’s collection of the property taxes. The parties shall coordinate 
and be cooperative in sharing the calculations to determine the annual payment 
amount and in providing a written invoice if requested.  

 
 
 
 



 

3 
 

4. Term.  
 
This agreement shall remain in effect for fifty (50) years after the last date 

indicated on the signature lines below, unless terminated or amended earlier by 
agreement of the parties.  

 
5. Interlocal Cooperation Act.   
 

In satisfaction of the Interlocal Act, the parties agree as follows. This agreement 
will be administered by the General Managers of each District, or their designees. This 
agreement does not create a separate entity, no joint budget will be established or 
maintained, and it is not anticipated that voting among members will be required. No 
real or personal property will be acquired, held, or disposed of or used in the joint or 
cooperative undertaking, except as otherwise expressly described herein. This 
agreement will not take effect until: (a) it has been approved by both parties, as 
required by Utah Code Ann. § 11-13-202(2), (b) it has been submitted to the attorney 
authorized to represent each party for review as to proper form and compliance with 
law, as required by Utah Code Ann. § 11-13-202.5, and (c) it has been filed with the 
keeper of records of each party, as required by Utah Code Ann. § 11-13-209. 

 
 

6. Miscellaneous. 
 

a. Amendment. Any amendment to this agreement must be made in 
writing.  
 

b. Assignment. The obligations and rights under this agreement may not be 
assigned to any third party unless agreed to in writing by the parties.  
 

c. Applicable Law. The provisions of this agreement shall be governed by 
and construed in accordance with the laws of the state of Utah. 
 

d. Integration. This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 
the parties pertaining to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all 
prior agreements and understandings pertaining thereto. 

 
e. Waiver. No failure by any party to insist upon the strict performance of 

any covenant, duty, agreement, or condition of this agreement or to 
exercise any right of remedy consequent upon a breach thereof shall 
constitute a waiver of any breach or of such or any other covenant, 
agreement, term or condition. Any party may, by notice delivered in the 
manner provided in this Agreement, but shall be under no obligation to, 
waive any of its rights or any conditions to its obligations hereunder, or 
any duty, obligation or covenant of any other party. No waiver shall affect 



 

4 
 

or alter the remainder of this agreement but each and every other 
covenant, agreement, term and condition hereof shall continue in full 
force and effect with respect to any other then existing or subsequently 
occurring breach. 

 
f. Attorneys’ Fees. In the event any action or proceeding is brought by 

either party regarding this agreement, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to receive its costs, expert witness fees, and reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, whether such sums are expended with or without suit, at 
trial or on appeal. 

 
 Each party is signing this agreement on the date stated opposite that party’s signature. 
 
 

TAYLORSVILLE-BENNION IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
      By_______________________________________ 

Don Russell, Board Chair 
 
      Date: ____________________________________ 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________   
District Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Attorney for the District 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

5 
 

 
                
GRANGER HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
      By_______________________________________ 

Board Chair 
 

Date: ____________________________________ 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________   
District Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Attorney for the District 
  



 

6 
 

Exhibit A 
GHID Properties to Receive Sewer services by Taylorsville-Bennion Improvement District 

 
Map 1 of 4 

 
Map 1 
Label Parcel Id Address 

01 15-34-483-007-0000 1467 W ALDER RD 

02 15-34-483-006-0000 1477 W ALDER RD 

03 15-34-483-005-0000 1487 W ALDER RD 

04 15-34-483-004-0000 1497 W ALDER RD 

05 15-34-483-003-0000 1507 W ALDER RD 

06 15-34-483-002-0000 1517 W ALDER RD 

07 15-34-483-001-0000 1525 W ALDER RD 

08 21-03-202-001-0000 4105 S 1540 W 

09 21-03-201-006-0000 4106 S 1540 W 

10 15-34-482-001-0000 4098 S 1540 W 

11 15-34-482-002-0000 1550 W ALDER RD 

12 15-34-482-003-0000 1538 W ALDER RD 

13 15-34-482-004-0000 1528 W ALDER RD 

14 15-34-482-005-0000 1518 W ALDER RD 

15 15-34-482-006-0000 1508 W ALDER RD 



 

7 
 

16 15-34-482-007-0000 1498 W ALDER RD 

17 15-34-482-008-0000 1488 W ALDER RD 

18 15-34-482-009-0000 1478 W ALDER RD 

19 15-34-482-010-0000 1468 W ALDER RD 

20 15-34-482-011-0000 1460 W ALDER RD 

21 15-34-482-012-0000 1450 W ALDER RD 

22 15-34-482-013-0000 1440 W ALDER RD 

23 15-34-482-014-0000 1430 W ALDER RD 

24 15-34-482-015-0000 1420 W ALDER RD 

25 15-34-482-023-0000 1408 W ALDER RD 

26 15-34-482-022-0000 1404 W ALDER RD 

27 15-34-482-017-0000 1398 W ALDER RD 

28 15-34-482-018-0000 1386 W ALDER RD 

29 15-34-482-019-0000 1376 W ALDER RD 

30 15-34-482-020-0000 1364 W ALDER RD 

31 15-34-482-021-0000 1352 W ALDER RD 

32 15-34-487-009-0000 1353 W ALDER RD 

33 15-34-484-008-0000 1363-1365 W ALDER RD 

34 15-34-484-007-0000 1381 W ALDER RD 

35 15-34-484-006-0000 1395 W ALDER RD 

36 15-34-484-005-0000 1405 W ALDER RD 

37 15-34-484-004-0000 1415 W ALDER RD 

38 15-34-484-003-0000 1427 W ALDER RD 

39 15-34-484-002-0000 1441 W ALDER RD 

40 15-34-484-001-0000 1451 W ALDER RD 

41 15-34-484-009-0000 1434 W MANGO RD 

42 15-34-484-010-0000 1422 W MANGO RD 

43 15-34-484-011-0000 1412 W MANGO RD 

44 15-34-484-012-0000 1402 W MANGO RD 

45 15-34-484-013-0000 1386 W MANGO RD 

46 15-34-484-014-0000 1374 W MANGO RD 

47 15-34-484-015-0000 1362 W MANGO RD 

48 15-34-484-016-0000 1358 W MANGO RD 

49 15-34-487-010-0000 4069 S 1355 W 

50 15-34-487-011-0000 4079 S 1355 W 

51 15-34-486-003-0000 4082 S 1355 W 

52 15-34-486-002-0000 1375 W MANGO RD 

53 15-34-486-001-0000 4083 S MANGO CIR 

54 15-34-486-004-0000 4095 S MANGO CIR 

55 21-03-229-005-0000 4099 S MANGO CIR 

56 21-03-229-004-0000 4108 S MANGO CIR 

57 21-03-229-003-0000 4104 S MANGO CIR 

58 15-34-485-004-0000 4098 S MANGO CIR 

59 15-34-485-003-0000 4082 S MANGO CIR 

60 15-34-485-002-0000 1417 W MANGO RD 

  



 

8 
 

Map 2 of 4 

 
Map 2 Label Parcel Id Address 

61 21-04-127-005-0000 2781-2787 W 4100 S 

62 21-04-127-016-0000 2803 W 4100 S 

 



 

9 
 

  



 

10 
 

Map 3 of 4  

 
Map 3 Label Parcel ID Address 

67 21-05-480-031-0000 3230 W 4700 S 

68 21-05-480-044-0000 3236 W 4700 S 

69 21-05-480-043-0000 3242-46 W 4700 S 

70 21-05-480-042-0000 3254-56 W 4700 S 

71 21-05-480-041-0000 3258 W 4700 S 

72 21-05-480-028-0000 3264 W 4700 S 

73 21-05-480-027-0000 3274 W 4700 S 

74 21-05-480-026-0000 3288 W 4700 S 

75 21-05-480-025-0000 3298 W 4700 S 

76 21-05-480-024-0000 3304-10 W 4700 S 

77 21-05-480-023-0000 3320-3324 W 4700 S 

78 21-05-480-022-0000 3330 W 4700 S 

79 21-05-480-021-0000 3340 W 4700 S 

80 21-05-479-004-0000 3356 W 4700 S 

81 21-05-479-003-0000 3368 W 4700 S 

82 21-05-454-024-0000 3406 W 4700 S 

83 21-05-454-023-0000 3430 W 4700 S 

84 21-05-454-022-0000 3444 W 4700 S 

85 21-05-454-021-0000 3450 W 4700 S 



 

11 
 

86 21-05-454-020-0000 3470 W 4700 S 

87 21-05-454-019-0000 3490 W 4700 S 

88 21-05-454-018-0000 3506 W 4700 S 

89 21-05-454-017-0000 3526 W 4700 S 

90 21-05-454-026-0000 3540 W 4700 S 

91 21-04-351-011-0000 3020 W 4700 S 

92 21-04-351-008-0000 3020 W 4700 S 

 
  



 

12 
 

Map 4 of 4 

 
Map 4 Label Parcel ID Address 

00 21-04-307-070-0000 3002 W WESTCOVE DR 

01 21-04-352-058-0000 2961 W WESTCOVE DR 

02 21-04-352-057-0000 2975 W WESTCOVE DR 

03 21-04-352-056-0000 2985 W WESTCOVE DR 

04 21-04-352-055-0000 2995 W WESTCOVE DR 

05 21-04-352-054-0000 3005 W WESTCOVE DR 

06 21-04-352-053-0000 3015 W WESTCOVE DR 

07 21-04-352-052-0000 3025 W WESTCOVE DR 

08 21-04-352-051-0000 3035 W WESTCOVE DR 

09 21-04-352-050-0000 3045 W WESTCOVE DR 

10 21-04-352-049-0000 3055 W WESTCOVE DR 

11 21-04-352-048-0000 3057 W WESTCOVE DR 

12 21-04-352-047-0000 3065 W WESTCOVE DR 

13 21-04-352-046-0000 3067 W WESTCOVE DR 

14 21-04-352-045-0000 3077 W WESTCOVE DR 

15 21-04-352-044-0000 3087 W WESTCOVE DR 

16 21-04-352-008-0000 3095 W WESTCOVE DR 

17 21-04-352-007-0000 3099 W WESTCOVE DR 

18 21-04-352-006-0000 3103 W WESTCOVE DR 



 

13 
 

19 21-04-352-005-0000 3105 W WESTCOVE DR 

20 21-04-352-004-0000 3107 W WESTCOVE DR 

21 21-04-352-003-0000 3109 W WESTCOVE DR 

22 21-04-352-002-0000 3111 W WESTCOVE DR 

23 21-04-352-001-0000 3115 W WESTCOVE DR 

24 21-04-351-017-0000 4551 S 3200 W 

25 21-04-303-036-0000 3170 W WESTCOVE DR 

26 21-04-303-034-0000 3160 W WESTCOVE DR 

27 21-04-303-037-0000 3158 W WESTCOVE DR 

28 21-04-303-060-0000 3148 W WESTCOVE DR 

29 21-04-303-061-0000 3148 W WESTCOVE DR 

30 21-04-303-035-0000 3150 W WESTCOVE DR 

31 21-04-303-038-0000 3128 W WESTCOVE DR 

32 21-04-303-066-0000 3128 W WESTCOVE DR 

33 21-04-303-056-0000 4560 S WOODCREEK ST 

34 21-04-303-055-0000 4554 S WOODCREEK ST 

35 21-04-303-054-0000 4548 S WOODCREEK ST 

36 21-04-303-053-0000 4542 S WOODCREEK ST 

37 21-04-303-052-0000 4536 S WOODCREEK ST 

38 21-04-307-020-0000 4541 S WOODCREEK ST 

39 21-04-307-021-0000 4544 S STONEWOOD DR 

40 21-04-307-023-0000 3076 W WESTCOVE DR 

41 21-04-307-022-0000 4547 S WOODCREEK ST 

42 21-04-307-057-0000 3084 W WESTCOVE DR 

43 21-04-307-058-0000 3074 W WESTCOVE DR 

44 21-04-307-059-0000 4570 S STONEWOOD DR 

45 21-04-307-067-0000 4560 S STONEWOOD DR 

46 21-04-307-056-0000 4560 S STONEWOOD DR 

47 21-04-307-044-0000 4534 S STONEWOOD DR 

48 21-04-307-043-0000 4524 S STONEWOOD DR 

49 21-04-307-017-0000 4514 S STONEWOOD DR 

50 21-04-307-016-0000 4504 S STONEWOOD DR 

51 21-04-307-042-0000 4494 S STONEWOOD DR 

52 21-04-307-049-0000 3038 W SHADOW PARK DR 

53 21-04-307-029-0000 4517 S STONEWOOD DR 

54 21-04-307-027-0000 4513 S STONEWOOD DR 

55 21-04-307-028-0000 3018 W SHADOW PARK DR 

56 21-04-307-030-0000 3022 W SHADOW PARK DR 

57 21-04-307-050-0000 3008 W SHADOW PARK DR 

58 21-04-307-035-0000 2998 W SHADOW PARK DR 

59 21-04-307-033-0000 2994 W SHADOW PARK DR 

60 21-04-307-034-0000 2988 W SHADOW PARK DR 

61 21-04-307-060-0000 2992 W SHADOW PARK DR 

62 21-04-307-063-0000 2984 W SHADOW PARK DR 

63 21-04-307-062-0000 2970 W SHADOW PARK DR 

64 21-04-307-061-0000 2972 W SHADOW PARK DR 

65 21-04-307-064-0000 2962 W SHADOW PARK DR 

66 21-04-308-030-0000 2964 W SHADOW PARK DR 



 

14 
 

67 21-04-308-033-0000 2973 W SHADOW PARK DR 

68 21-04-308-016-0000 2966 W WESTCOVE DR 

69 21-04-308-029-0000 2973 W SHADOW PARK DR 

70 21-04-308-028-0000 2983 W SHADOW PARK DR 

71 21-04-308-026-0000 2989 W SHADOW PARK DR 

72 21-04-308-012-0000 2986 W WESTCOVE DR 

73 21-04-308-032-0000 2986 W WESTCOVE DR 

74 21-04-308-027-0000 2996 W SHADOW PARK DR 

75 21-04-308-009-0000 2999 W SHADOW PARK DR 

76 21-04-308-018-0000 3009 W SHADOW PARK DR 

77 21-04-308-024-0000 3019 W SHADOW PARK DR 

78 21-04-308-006-0000 3016 W WESTCOVE DR 

79 21-04-308-025-0000 3026 W SHADOW PARK DR 

80 21-04-308-023-0000 3029 W SHADOW PARK DR 

81 21-04-308-017-0000 3039 W SHADOW PARK DR 

82 21-04-308-020-0000 4553 S STONEWOOD DR 

83 21-04-308-031-0000 4571 S STONEWOOD DR 

 
  



 

15 
 

Exhibit B 
TBID Properties to Receive Sewer services by Granger Hunter Improvement District 

 
Map 1 of 1 

 
Map 1 Label Parcel Id Address 

65 21-04-153-034-0000 4400 S ALICE WY 

64 21-04-155-023-0000 3034 W BEDFORD RD 

63 21-04-157-023-0000 4383 S ALICE WY 

66 21-04-182-001-0000 4399 S ALICE WY 
 
4847-8247-3183, v. 2 



     Page 1 of 3

REVENUES

Amended

Actual Budget % of Actual Budget % of

6/30/2020 2020 Budget 6/30/2021 2021 Budget

REVENUES

Operating Revenues:

Water Sales $ 7,488,957   $ 19,728,000 38.0% $ 7,068,176   $ 19,884,000 35.5%

Sewer Service Charges 5,051,506   11,807,000 42.8% 5,033,955   11,677,000 43.1%

Central Valley Assessmt 1,345,942   2,700,000   49.8% 1,350,169   2,700,000   50.0%

Engineering Fees 3,400          6,000          56.7% 5,227          7,000          74.7%

Connection fees 22,409        34,000        65.9% 12,304        40,000        30.8%

Inspection 33,229        49,000        67.8% 31,126        55,000        56.6%

Delinquent/Turn-on Fees 8,265          35,000        23.6% 2,765          35,000        7.9%

Conservation Grant 42,500        68,500        62.0% 34,570        41,300        83.7%

Total Operating Revenue 13,996,208 34,427,500 40.7% 13,538,292 34,439,300 39.3%

Property Tax Revenue:

Property Tax 17,456        3,400,000   0.5% (15,932)       3,400,000   -0.5%

Motor Vehicle 89,594        250,000      35.8% 113,014      250,000      45.2%

Personal Property 262,737      325,000      80.8% 299,447      325,000      92.1%

Delinquent Tax/Interest 42,181        80,000        52.7% 46,348        80,000        57.9%

Tax Increment for RDA -                  200,000      0.0% -                  200,000      0.0%

Total Property Tax Revenue 411,968      4,255,000   9.7% 442,877      4,255,000   10.4%

Non-operating Revenue:

Impact Fees - Water 437,726      300,000      145.9% 248,076      450,000      55.1%

Impact Fees - Sewer 244,221      150,000      162.8% 134,364      200,000      67.2%

Interest 224,563      525,000      42.8% 80,635        250,000      32.3%

Sale of Surplus Equipment 6,037          59,000        10.2% 1,209          40,000        3.0%

Other 50,084        120,000      41.7% 69,979        120,000      58.3%

Total Non-operating Revenue 962,631      1,154,000   83.4% 534,263      1,060,000   50.4%

Total Revenues $ 15,370,807 $ 39,836,500 38.6% $ 14,515,432 $ 39,754,300 36.5%

Percent of Year Completed: 50.00%



Page 2 of 3

 EXPENSES

Amended

Actual Budget % of Actual Budget % of

6/30/2020 2020 Budget 6/30/2021 2021 Budget

EXPENSES

Payroll Wages:

Salaries & Wages $ 2,626,517   $ 5,028,072     52.2% $ 2,162,241     $ 4,893,240      44.2%

Overtime Wages 57,255        175,000        32.7% 41,764          175,000         23.9%

On-call Pay 32,051        71,280          45.0% 32,017          71,280           44.9%

Incentive Pay 5,727          15,000          38.2% 4,955            15,000           33.0%

Vehicle Allowance 3,808          9,000            42.3% 2,537            9,000             28.2%

Other/OPEB 125,267      250,000        50.1% -                    250,000         0.0%

Clothing Allowance -                  22,000          0.0% -                    21,450           0.0%

   Total Payroll Wages 2,850,625   5,570,352     51.2% 2,243,514     5,434,970      41.3%

Payroll Benefits:

State Retirement Plan 412,033      955,045        43.1% 391,587        947,920         41.3%

401K Plan 314,018      598,677        52.5% 258,915        594,210         43.6%

Health/Dental Insurance 781,921      1,670,320     46.8% 894,831        1,687,023      53.0%

Medicare 39,161        73,547          53.2% 31,914          72,730           43.9%

Workers Compensation Ins 6,493          40,000          16.2% 16,863          40,000           42.2%

Life/LTD/LTC Insurance 40,189        75,000          53.6% 53,735          75,000           71.6%

State Unemployment 3,394          5,000            67.9% -                    10,000           0.0%

   Total Payroll Benefits 1,597,209   3,417,589     46.7% 1,647,845     3,426,883      48.1%

Operations & Maintenance:

Repair & Replacement 176,671      655,560        26.9% 304,184        663,900         45.8%

Building & Grounds 40,527        82,450          49.2% 36,214          82,450           43.9%

Vehicle Maint & Fuel 81,196        189,431        42.9% 96,141          168,680         57.0%

Vehicle Lease 106,611      254,600        41.9% 129,460        225,800         57.3%

Tools & Supplies 25,041        73,400          34.1% 31,252          89,750           34.8%

Water Purchases 3,482,508   11,010,400   31.6% 3,714,230     10,717,260    34.7%

Treatment Chemicals 9,127          41,300          22.1% 26,607          41,300           64.4%

Water Lab Testing Fees 16,615        76,750          21.6% 8,338            66,500           12.5%

Utilities 249,664      982,000        25.4% 302,243        905,000         33.4%

  Total O&M 4,187,960   13,365,891   31.3% 4,648,669     12,960,640    35.9%

CVWRF:

Facility Operations 1,723,609   4,494,860     38.3% 2,416,434     5,517,471      43.8%

Project Betterments 187,916      1,360,725     13.8% 714,067        1,748,831      40.8%

Interceptor Monitoring (2,967)         -                    0.0% -                    -                     0.0%

Pre-treatment Field 116,190      283,675        41.0% 152,826        286,024         53.4%

Laboratory 89,406        227,418        39.3% 131,285        251,563         52.2%

CVW Debt Service 981,253      1,954,999     50.2% 1,355,740     3,311,053      40.9%

  Total CVWRF $ 3,095,407   $ 8,321,677     37.2% $ 4,770,352     $ 11,114,942    42.9%



Page 3 of 3

Actual Budget % of Actual Budget % of

6/30/2020 2020 Budget 6/30/2021 2021 Budget

General & Administrative:

Office Supplies/Printing $ 8,566          $ 33,940          25.2% $ 9,245            $ 27,840           33.2%

Postage & Mailing 62,235        159,500        39.0% 60,995          155,550         39.2%

General Administrative 17,684        61,000          29.0% 14,311          133,810         10.7%

Computer Supplies 129,310      494,243        26.2% 182,470        471,167         38.7%

General Insurance 264,493      439,612        60.2% 294,192        360,595         81.6%

Utilities 33,055        95,500          34.6% 34,181          95,500           35.8%

Telephone 49,148        120,200        40.9% 40,980          113,600         36.1%

Training & Education 35,888        133,200        26.9% 20,022          97,475           20.5%

Safety 27,488        39,620          69.4% 17,816          40,620           43.9%

Legal fees 4,861          44,000          11.0% 17,087          54,000           31.6%

Auditing Fees 12,000        12,000          100.0% 12,000          12,000           100.0%

Professional Consulting 15,305        97,400          15.7% 81,639          347,400         23.5%

Public Relations/Conservation 8,020          55,000          14.6% 59,615          98,500           60.5%

Banking & Bonding 153,191      330,900        46.3% 143,897        332,900         43.2%

Admin Contingency -                  180,000        0.0% -                    180,000         0.0%

  Total General Administrative 821,244      2,296,115     35.8% 988,450        2,520,957      39.2%

Total Operating Expenses 12,552,445 32,971,624   38.1% 14,298,830   35,458,392    40.3%

0.0%

Net Operating Revenues 2,818,362   6,864,876     41.1% 216,602        4,295,908      5.0%

Indirect Operating Expenses:

Depreciation -                  7,700,000     0.0% 3,977,698     8,000,000      49.7%

RDA Pass-Through -                  200,000        0.0% -                    200,000         0.0%

  Total Indirect Operating Exp -                  7,900,000     0.0% 3,977,698     8,200,000      48.5%

Equipment and Infrastructure:

Infrastructure 1,761,922   15,746,152   11.2% 2,379,437     21,304,500    11.2%

New Vehicles & Equipment 168,315      409,747        41.1% 64,012          625,810         10.2%

  Total Equipment 1,930,237   16,155,899   11.9% 2,443,449     21,930,310    11.1%

Debt Service:

Bond Interest and Fees 22,971        244,995        9.4% 36,781          207,388         17.7%

Bond Principal Pmt ('12 Bond) 288,000      288,000        100.0% 295,000        311,000         94.9%

Bond Princ Pmt (2019 DEQ) 435,525      310,000        140.5% 532,000        532,000         100.0%

  Total Debt Service 746,496      842,995        88.6% 863,781        1,050,388      82.2%

Total Equip & Debt Service 2,676,733   16,998,894   15.7% 3,307,230     22,980,698    14.4%

Net Revenues 141,629      (18,034,018)  -0.8% (7,068,326)    (26,884,790)   26.3%

Infrastructure and Debt

Add back Depreciation -                  7,700,000     0.0% 3,977,698     8,000,000      49.7%

Add back Infrastructure 1,761,922   15,746,152   11.2% 2,379,437     21,304,500    11.2%

Net Revenues, net of Infr & Depr $ 1,903,551   $ 5,412,134     35.2% $ (711,191)       $ 2,419,710      -29.4%































































Capital Projects Approval
20B-1: RGWTP Waterlines Project

Capital Project: Wells 1, 12, 17 Treatment Facility
Consultant: J-U-B Engineers
Contractor: To be determined
Design Progress: 100%
Budget $5,440,000.00
Original Construction: -

Project Description: As part of the Rushton Groundwater Treatment Plant,
piping modifications are necessary along 3300 South and 3100 South.

Summary: The District posted an invitation to bid on the Utah Public
Procurement Place (U3P) and on the District’s website. A bid opening was held
in person and remotely on July 7 and three (3) bids were received.

It is recommended that the low bidder, Silver Spur Construction, LLC, be
awarded the construction contract. The contractor has met the qualification
requirements and has a positive history working with the District.

Approval Requested: Consider approval of construction contract to Silver
Spur Construction, LLC. for the 20B-1: RGWTP Waterlines Project in the
amount of $1,172,500.00.

CONTRACTOR
OPTION NO. 1
OPEN TRENCH

OPTION NO. 2
BORING

1 Silver Spur Construction, LLC $           1,182,500.00 $           1,172,500.00
2 Condie Construction Co. $           1,778,475.00 $           1,518,475.00
3 VanCon, Inc. $           1,633,500.00 $           1,763,500.00



Capital Projects Approval
20B-1: RGWTP Waterlines Project

Services Requested: Construction Administration
Capital Project: Wells 1, 12, 17 Treatment Facility
Consultant: To Be Determined
Design Progress: 100%
Budget $5,440,000.00
Original Construction: -

Project Description: As part of the Rushton Groundwater Treatment Plant,
piping modifications are necessary along 3300 South and 3100 South.

Summary: The District is requesting construction administration services from
J-U-B Engineers, Inc. for the project. The services include conducting
construction meetings, submittal review, change order assistance, project
documentation, public involvement, and project closeout in the amount of
$99,400.00.

It is recommended that the additional cost of $99,400.00 for construction
administration be approved for J-U-B Engineers.

Approval Requested: Consider the approval of a contract amendment for J-U-
B Engineers, Inc. in the amount of $99,400.00 for construction administration
services for the 20B-1: RGWTP Waterlines Project.

21J: GHID Headquarters Landscaping Phase II

Services Requested: Landscape Design
Capital Project: Headquarters Landscaping Phase 2 (South End)
Consultant: To Be Determined
Design Progress: 5%
Budget $400,000.00
Original Construction: -

Project Description: Phase 2 landscaping will include landscape improvements along
the south side of the GHID Headquarter property. Priority locations are the pond,
southwest side along the wall and south entrance.

Project Update: The District is requesting landscape design services from J-U-B
Engineers, Inc. for the project. The services include preliminary and final
construction documents for the south end of the property in the amount of
$56,000.00.

It is recommended that the cost of $56,000.00 for landscape design be approved for
J-U-B Engineers.

Approval Requested: Consider approval of a landscape design contract to J-U-B
Engineers, Inc. in the amount of $56,400.00 for the 21J: GHID Headquarters
Landscaping Phase II.



2021 Market Compensation Plan 
Summary

Our commitment to the District’s 2024 Strategic Plan provided us an opportunity to complete a Market Compensation Study 
in the Spring of 2021. Results from the study show that our external equity, as compared to our grade structure, is in line 
with market demands of today. However, the analysis of our internal equity presented some challenges that were strongly 
reflected in the Employee Stay Interviews, in our recent turnover of the past 12 months, and in recruiting challenges we 
have faced thus far this year.

With our current 2021 budget for salaries and wages at $4.8M, we anticipate that we will underrun that budget by 
approximately $300,000. We would like to recommend utilizing some of this underrun for compensation adjustments to 
alleviate the compression we faced based on previous recruiting strategies that have placed us in a tough spot in the current
labor market.

Recommendations for Consideration:
1. If the employee falls below 85% comp ratio, bring up current salary to 85% of midpoint. This approach will impact 24 

employees (32% of our total population) and will be a total spend of about $20,000 (assuming 11 pay periods left in the 
year).

2. If employee falls between 85.1% <89.9% comp ratio AND they meet job description years of experience requirements, 
bring up current salary to 90% of midpoint. This impacts a smaller number of employees, only 4. However, we had 
significant internal movement over the last year which put about half of our employees in new positions.

3. For grades 16 and below, if employee falls between 90.1%<99.9% comp ratio AND they have a defined number of years 
of service within the District (increasing with grade), bring up current salary to midpoint. This impacts approximately 
another 15 employees. The total spend would be about $25,000.

4. The final recommendation falls in line with our current mid-year review process. Directors would recommend those 
employees, currently on track to receive 4 or 5 performance rating, for a mid-year increase.


	(1)July 2021 Agenda
	(2)June 2021 Minutes
	(3)Interlocal For Split Services 4847-8247-3183 v.2
	(4)July Financial Report
	(5)July 2021 Check Report
	(6)July 2021 Engineering Projects Approval
	(7)2021 Market Compensation Plan Summary

